
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION

LARRY MOORE )
)

Plaintiff, ) 07 CV 6386
)

v. )         Judge Norgle
) Magistrate Judge Ashman               

UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY, )
)

Defendant. ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

NOW COMES the Plaintiff, LARRY MOORE, by and through his attorney, John S. Bishof, Jr.

of the Law Office of John Bishof, PC, and for his Complaint against the Defendant, UNION

PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY, states unto this Honorable Court as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This is a civil action arising under the laws of the United States and is brought pursuant

to Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000e et seq, and Title I of the

Civil Rights Act of 1991,  to correct unlawful employment practices on the basis of

race, to provide appropriate relief to classes of employees who were adversely affected

by such practices. 

2. This Court has jurisdiction of the claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1343.

3. Venue is proper in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C.A. § 1391(b) and 42 U.S.C.A. §

2000e-5(f)(1) and (3) and §102 of the Civil Rights Act of 1991, 42 U.S.C. § 1981a.

4. The employment practices hereafter alleged to be unlawful were being committed

within the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Northern District of

Illinois, Eastern Division.
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PARTIES

5. Plaintiff, Larry Moore, is now, and at all times relevant hereto, a citizen of the State of

Illinois and resident of this District in the County of Cook. 

6. Defendant, Union Pacific Railroad Company (hereinafter “UP”), is now, and at all

times relevant hereto, a corporation duly organized and existing according to law

engaged in business as a common carrier by rail in interstate commerce. The UP’s

principal place of business is located in Omaha, Nebraska.  UP, at all relevant times,

does business as a common carrier by rail in counties of this District to include the

County of Cook.  The UP, also, owns, operates and controls many miles of track, rail

yards and related facilities throughout the County of Cook, State of Illinois. UP is and

was an employer under Section 701(b) of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42

U.S.C. § 2000e(b)).  For purposes of the Civil Rights Act of 1991 (42 U.S.C. 1981a),

UP is an employer who employs in excess of fifteen (15) employees.

7. At all times relevant hereto, Plaintiff, Larry Moore, was employed by Defendant, UP, as 

Director of Transportation Services and Senior Manager Terminal Operations, and

plaintiff and defendant were engaged in work in furtherance of interstate commerce.

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

8. On or about February 20, 2007, Plaintiff filed charges of Discrimination against

Defendant with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), Charge No.

440-2007-03204 (“Exhibit A”).

9. Plaintiff received the right to sue letter from the EEOC for charge no. 440-2007-03204 on

or after September 7, 2007. Said right to sue letter is attached hereto as “Exhibit B”.  This
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case is filed within ninety (90) days of receipt of said right to sue letter.

10. Plaintiff’s Charge of Discrimination was timely filed after the alleged unlawful

employment practice occurred.  Thus, Plaintiff has satisfied all administrative

prerequisites for charge no. 440-2007-03204. 

11. On or about December 13, 2007, Plaintiff filed charges of Discrimination against

Defendant with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), Charge No

440-2008-01279 (Exhibit “C”).

12. Plaintiff received the right to sue letter from the EEOC for charge no. 440-2008-01279 on

or after February 12, 2008.  Said right to sue letter is attached hereto as “Exhibit D”.  This

case is filed within ninety (90) days of receipt of said right to sue letter.

13. Plaintiff’s Charge of Discrimination was timely filed after the alleged unlawful

employment practice occurred.  Thus, Plaintiff has satisfied all administrative

prerequisites for charge no. 440-2008-01279. 

BACKGROUND

14. Plaintiff began his employment with defendant on or about June 12, 1970 and ascended

through the ranks to the position of Director of Transportation Services and served as the

senior ranking transportation officer.

15. As the senior ranking transportation officer, Plaintiff had the authority to grant safety

awards.

16. Plaintiff, in accordance with his responsibilities, purchased memberships in the Black

Employee Network (hereinafter “BEN”) as safety awards for fourteen (14) UP employees

in March 2005 and for thirty-one (31) UP employees in January 2006, totaling $2,610.00
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17. Plaintiff directed the Manager of Administration and Purchasing, a Caucasian female, to

make payment for said safety awards.

18. The funds used for the purchase of the BEN memberships in March 2005 and January

2006 were from the Ogilvie working fund, a UP commuter operations management

pooled fund of collections from conductors for unauthorized use of their cell phones.  The

Ogilvie working fund was not recorded in UP’s general ledger.

19. Said Manager of Administration and Purchasing initiated the use of the Ogilvie working

fund for purchase of the fourteen (14) BEN memberships.

20. Plaintiff never instructed the said manager from which funds she should withdraw for

payment of the safety awards. 

21. Plaintiff did not initiate using the Ogilvie working fund and was never instructed or

warned not to use the Ogilvie working fund for purchase of safety awards.

22. UP senior management requested an audit by the in-house audit division of the funds

used for the BEN memberships Plaintiff distributed.   

23. On July 7, 2006, Plaintiff received a Level 2 Letter of Reprimand for misuse of company

working funds regarding his purchase of the BEN memberships as safety awards.  

24. This letter of reprimand was Plaintiff’s only notice of any problems or irregularities of the

purchase of said awards.

25. Based solely on Plaintiff’s receipt of the Level 2 Reprimand, Plaintiff was demoted to

Senior Manager of Terminal Operations, effective July 1, 2006, and removed from UP’s

merit achievement and management incentive programs (hereinafter “MIP/MAP

program” for 2006-2007.  
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26. Plaintiff’s demotion did not decrease plaintiff’s job responsibilities or the staff he

managed and Plaintiff still served as the senior ranking transportation officer, but

plaintiff’s salary and benefits were severely hindered.  

27. Defendant failed to make any inquiry regarding Plaintiff’s alleged misuse of company

working funds.

28. More severe discrepancies in use of funds were committed by Caucasian employees that

were similarly situated to plaintiff.   None of these employees were demoted or

disciplined.

29. Audits by defendant’s in-house audit division revealed the following: 

a. the Director of Commuter Operations Mechanical (Caucasian male) approved

$18,495.00 of American Express Gift Cheques but no logs of the employees who

received these awards were kept; 

b. the Retired Director of Track Maintenance (Caucasian male) approved $18,670.80

of desk clocks, but no logs of the employees who received these awards were

kept; 

c. the Retired Director of Administration (Caucasian male) approved $34,582.44 of

inventory from On Time Promotions which was not accounted for; 

d. the Director of Commuter Operations Locomotive (Caucasian male) approved

$71,164.00 of American Express Gift Cheques, which the purchaser tracking logs

had been discarded; $1,611.01 to the Crystal Woods Golf Club, which attendance

records were not kept for the safety meetings; and $8,217.77 in On Time

Promotions inventory, which no logs were kept of the employees who received
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these awards; and

e. the Director of Commuter Operations Carrier (Caucasian male) approved

$110,792.50 of American Express Gift Cheques without utilizing the Purchaser

Tracker Log, and $14,653.50 of Sears Gift Cards, which no logs were kept of the

employees who received these awards.

30. Plaintiff then filed a charge of racial discrimination with the EEOC against his employer,

Union Pacific Railroad, on February 20, 2007 (Charge No. 440-2007-03204).

31. On March 1, 2007, in retaliation and an act of continuous discrimination based on race,

defendant, UP, demoted plaintiff by stripping him of his senior ranking transportation

officer job responsibilities, removing one half of the staff he managed, and made a less

qualified, less experienced, white male the senior ranking transportation officer.

COUNT I

Violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 

42 U.S.C. §2000e-2(a) and 42 U.S.C. §1981a(a)(1)

1-31.  Plaintiff reaffirms and realleges the allegations contained in Paragraph 1 through 31 above,

and states further in this Count I.

32. Defendant discriminated against plaintiff and demoted plaintiff because of his race.

33. The plaintiff’s race is African American.

34. Defendant’s conduct in hindering plaintiff’s wages and job responsibilities and

summarily demoting plaintiff without any inquiry and not demoting other similarly

situated employees, who were Caucasian, was discriminatory and in violation of

plaintiff’s civil rights.
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35. Upon information and belief, the unlawful discriminatory practices by Defendant, as set

forth above, were intentional.

36. Defendant, at all relevant times, acted with malice or reckless indifference to the federally

protected rights of Plaintiff in violation of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42

U.S.C. §2000e et seq, and the Civil Rights Act of 1991.

37. That the aforesaid acts by the Defendant have intentionally discriminated against Plaintiff

because of his race by: 

a. Assessing a penalty to Plaintiff and not to a similarly situated Caucasian female for

allegedly violating the Business Conduct and Ethics Policy for use of funds from the

Ogilive working fund; 

b. Assessing a penalty to Plaintiff and not to similarly situated Caucasian males for

facially apparent misuse of funds;

c. Assessing a penalty to Plaintiff without making any inquiry regarding the said

allegations made against him; 

d. Demoting plaintiff and hindering his wages and benefits permitted under the

MIP/MAP program;

e. Demoting plaintiff by stripping him of his senior ranking transportation officer job

responsibilities and removing one half of the staff he managed; and

f. Replacing plaintiff in the position of senior ranking transportation officer with a less

qualified, less experienced, white male who had several complaints of racial

discrimination against him pending.

38. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violation of Title VII, Plaintiff has lost
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and will continue to lose income, including but not limited to wages, raises, insurance and

other employment benefits.  Plaintiff has also suffered emotional distress, as well as

disruption of his personal life and damage to his employment reputation.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays that judgment be entered against Defendant

for recovery of reasonable damages in an amount greater than Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars

($75,000.00), together with interest thereon, as well as such other damages as may be proven at

the time of trial, including but not necessarily limited to, actual, consequential and punitive

damages, attorneys fees and cost, and such other and further relief as this Court may deem

appropriate.

COUNT II
Retaliation in Violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

42 U.S.C. § 2000e-3(a)

1-38.  Plaintiff reaffirms and realleges the allegations contained in Paragraph 1 through 38 

above, and states further in this Count II.

39. Section 2000e-3(a) of  Title VII prohibits, inter alia, retaliation and discrimination against

any individual because that individual made a charge, testified, assisted, or participated in

any manner in an investigation, proceeding, or hearing under the Title VII of the Civil

Rights Act of 1964, as amended.

40. Defendant retaliated against plaintiff after plaintiff filed a claim alleging discrimination

with the Illinois Department of Human Rights/United States Equal Employment

Opportunity Commission on February 20, 2007.

41. Defendant retaliated on March 1, 2007 against plaintiff by:

a. Demoting plaintiff;
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b. Stripping plaintiff of his job responsibilities and removing one half of the staff he

managed; and

c. Replacing plaintiff with a less qualified, less experienced, white male who had several

complaints of racial discrimination against him pending.

42. Upon information and belief, the unlawful discriminatory practices by Defendant, as set

forth above, were intentional.

43. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights

Act of 1964, as amended, Plaintiff has lost and will continue to lose income, including

but not limited to wages, salary increases, insurance and other employment benefits. 

Plaintiff has also suffered severe emotional distress, physical illness, humiliation about

the ability to support himself, as well as disruption of his personal life and damage to his

employment reputation.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully prays that judgment be entered against Defendant

UP for recovery of reasonable damages in an amount greater than Seventy-Five Thousand

Dollars ($75,000.00), together with interest thereon, as well as such other damages as may be

proven at the time of trial, including but not necessarily limited to back pay, front pay,

compensatory damages, attorneys fees and cost, and such other and further relief as this Court

may deem appropriate.

Respectfully submitted,

s/ John S. Bishof, Jr

John S. Bishof, Jr., #213926
Law Office of John Bishof P.C

77 West Washington St., Suite 1910
Chicago, IL 60602

Ph: 312-630-2048  Fax: 312-630-2085
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PLAINTIFF’S EXHIBIT B
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PLAINTIFF’S EXHIBIT C
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PLAINTIFF’S EXHIBIT D
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